
 

 

 

 

 

 

Tender no SAT 144/19: -Marketing and Communications Agency Services 

 

 

Notes for Bid Clarification 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

               “Please include a signed copy of the Addendum with the Bid submission” 

 

 



South African Tourism (SA Tourism) agreed that bidders can make enquiries for any point of clarity 

on SA Tourism’s Tender no SAT 144/19: -Marketing and Communications Agency Services where all 

responses will be published on SA Tourism’s website by no later than 20 May 2019. 

SA Tourism also indicated that any actual discrepancy, ambiguity, error or inconsistency in the bid 

or any other information provided by SA Tourism will, if possible, be corrected and provided to all 

Bidder(s) without attribution to the Bidder(s) who provided the written notice. 

This notice is therefore aimed at notifying bidders on points of clarity that was required from certain 

bidders and for transparency have been consolidated and made available to all potential bidders. 

Bidders should therefore, in addition to the initial Request for Proposal, also consider the following 

points in preparation of bid proposals:- 

# Question Response 

1 Can we just deliver whatever size it turns out to be? Yes, you may. 

2 When there is a main contractor and subcontractor does 

everybody in the consortium need to initial every page or 

does the subcontractor just do their pages 

Only the main bidder must initial. 

3 With regards to the above mentioned tender, we’ve been 

in talks with a prospective partner to bid with and we would 

like to make sure that we are on the same page and we 

don’t get disqualified. Seeing we are unincorporated and 

would like to pull our resources together as separate 

companies to be partners. Is it safe to say that both 

companies should submit: 

1. CK/PTY Document of each partner 

2. ID copies of directors from each entity 

3. TCC from each company 

4. BBBEE from each entity 

What I am trying to understand is seeing we are 

unincorporated at this moment, we don’t need to have a 

TCC from SARS that collectively joins us or a BBBEE that 

collectively joins us but to simply combine our set of 

documents as though we were bidding individually and get 

the two setse of documents together. 

Is that correct? Please kind advise 

You need to provide all those legal 

documents for each company, the 

only thing that is consolidated is your 

BBBEE and CSD registration of the 

joint-

venture/consortium/partnership 

inclusive of unincorporated 

partnerships. 

4 We are registered on the CSD and tried to do a search for 

sub-contractors on the site but it asks for a procurement 

number.  I tried the Tender number on the front cover (SAT 

144/19) and footer (SAT2Q-TMP-01) of the tender 

document but it doesn’t bring up any results.  What is the 

procurement reference we are supposed to be using? 

We did not select 

any subcontractors from CSD for this 

tender, your company can choose 

whomever meets the 

requirements for a subcontractor as 

per our tender document. 

5 We have a longstanding relationship with an excellent 

candidate that we have worked with previously and have an 

existing relationship with but she has been operating as a 

She can still register on CSD as sole 

supplier and use the DITI sworn 

affidavit for the B-BBEE verification. 



sole proprietor.  She is in the process of registering her 

company but doesn’t have the necessary CIPC registration 

yet – Can we still propose her as the sub-contractor even 

though she is still going through the registration 

process?  Her company will be registered by the second 

round should we make it through. 

6 We have been in touch with a few existing agencies that 

could comply with the sub-contractor criteria that we 

haven’t worked with before but they are mostly pitching 

independently for this. 

Would you be open to us still submitting for Part A 

independently as a global content agency but with the 

proviso that we will partner with a sub-contractor that you 

have identified as part of the first round as a good fit but 

perhaps is too small to be the lead agency? 

The pre-qualification bid condition 

for sub-contracting with a preferred 

partner needs to already be in place 

by the time the bid closes. 

 

7 Can unincorporated consortiums pitch on different pieces 

of business with different partners? eg: Can we pitch on 

creative agency with one consortium and then on our own 

for Digital 

NO, you are not allowed to pitch with 

different partners. 

However, should you wish to pitch 

once with a consortium and then 

individually for other disciplines this 

is permitted, as long as the 

disciplines do not coincide. 

 

8 Financial statements - how many years do you require? Three years 

9 Please may you kindly qualify in your terms, if the below is 
accurate?  
1. Micro Enterprise (EME) – Up to R10m 
2. Small Enterprise (QSE) - R10m - R50m 
3. Generic - R50m and above 

Yes, all correct as outlined  

10 Secondly, could we please have clarity on what it is meant 
by "Account Track Record / Expertise" on page 23 - 9.5.1, 
PART A - line number (d). What type of supporting 
documentation is needed for this? 

A list of companies you provided 
similar services to with contact 
details. A comprehensive outlay of 
your expertise for the marketing 
discipline(s) being tendered for 

11 We intend to submit on Strategy agency (ies) for business 
events, visitor experience, corporate strategy and leisure 
strategy; but we are not so sure what the requirements 
are for this category. 
 
Do you require an events management agency to also 
implement on events? Or only consulting on strategy? 
 

It is brand and communication 
strategy for the business units: 

 Business events 

 Visitor experience including 
Tourism Grading Council and 
WeDoTourism 

 Leisure tourism 

 South African Tourism 
corporate or stakeholder 

 

12 In the briefing session today someone asked a question 
with regards to international media buying and the 
response was that they need to focus on local/domestic.  
 
Does this then mean the focus of this bid is strictly 
Domestic? 
 

The media buys as initiated for the 
purpose of brand marketing and 
communications from South Africa 
and for domestic media. Nothing 
prevents and agency however to 
mention global capabilities which 
can boost their profile against 



respective marketing discipline(s) 
being tendered for 

13 We have another question regarding the Proposed cost 
structure section of the proposal 
 
How detailed do you want this cost structure to be? What 
exactly would you want to see on the procurement side of 
things regarding this criteria? It is worth 10 point 
 

SA Tourism only requires 
costing/pricing methodologies 
agencies intend to propose i.e. 
retainer based, project fees, output 
based etc. (not actual bid price).  

14 There is a requirement that we have original certified 
copies of directors’ ID’s/Passports. Two of our directors 
are based in Kenya and one in Dubai, we could request 
that they have their docs certified locally in their 
respective countries and courier that copies, can you 
please let me know whether this will be acceptable or if 
the copies have to be certified locally, if locally we have 
another challenge, i.e. that whomever the commissioner 
is won’t in fact have line of site of the actual ID/Passport 
and would be certifying off a scanned copy 

Docs can be certified locally in their 
respective countries and couriered 
to be included in the bid submission 

15 With regards to proof of financial stability for EMEs/sub-
contractors what sort of proof would be valid in this 
regard? Would a letter from the bank be sufficient or 
records of accounts etc. please clarify? 

We normally require copies of latest 
audited Statement of financial 
position, Statement of financial 
performance and Cash flow 
statement and latest audit report 
(issued by independent auditors). 
Shortlisted bidders will be required 
to submit full set of latest financials 
upon request from SAT), 

16 For a global agency like ourselves, would you accept 
global case studies as valid submission as a way of 
showcasing relevant experience? 

Global case study would apply if 
South African Tourism would benefit 
from these skills in the disciplines in 
which you are tendering. 

17 When determining if an organisation is an EME or QSE, is 
this based on the Media and Advertising Charter or the 
generic scorecard? 

Generic score card 

18 Please confirm that the requirement of working with an 
EME or a QSE applies to their size on tender date and not 
in the future? 

Size and status at tender closing 
date 

19 Is the agency pitching entitled to replace the EME or QSE 
during the course of the contract because of non-
performance? 

Yes, but this needs to be done in 
consultation with SA Tourism 

20 In terms of the requirement that the EME or the QSE needs 
to have a proven track record, please can you define the 
criteria for determining this. Specifically, if they are a 
new entity can they use their previous work experience to 
prove capabilities?   

Skills, capacity and experience must 
exist within that new entity. 

21 Is the 30% requirement based on the revenue (e.g. fees) 
that are likely to be earned or based on the total spend 
(fees versus total media budget) 

Total budget. 

22 From a cash flow perspective is there a requirement for 
the tendering agency to fund the EME or QSE, if there are 
late payments from South African Tourism? If not, what 
would the recourse be? 

Payment terms gets negotiated at 
contract level where payments 
terms where EME’s and QSE’s are 
involved gets looked at more 
favorably. As a public entity Sa 
Tourism is in any event completed 
to settle invoices within agreed 
terms 

23 Is an EME or a QSE entitled to tender in their own right 
and as a sub-contractor to another agency who is 
tendering? 

No, the bid conditions are very 
clear, any agency can only bid once 



whether on their own or in 
partnership with another agency 

24 Given that SAT will contract with individual agencies 
within the consortium, does SAT also reserve the right to 
unbundle a consortium? 

Yes, as a special bid condition SAT 
do reserve this right 

25 In a case of Consortium, should the Enterprise Declaration 
Affidavit be signed by the lead bidder or by all parties in 
the partnership? 

An Affidavit should be completed by 
each agency and signed respectively 

26 Confirm if the consortium partners can be separately or 
individually contracted with South African Tourism and the 
legal implications thereof? 

The responsibility to sub-contract 
with competent and capable sub-
contractor’s rests with the main 
bidder. The contract will be 
concluded between the main bidder 
and South African Tourism, 
therefore, the main bidder and not 
the sub-contractor would be held 
liable for performance in terms of 
its contractual obligations 

27 Confirm if sub-contracting threshold can exceed 50% since 
the minimum requirement is 30%? 

It could exceed but the implications 
will be that the main bidder might 
lose control of the output? 

28 Can a tenderer sub-contract multiple suppliers across 
various marketing disciplines within the minimum sub-
contracting threshold? 

Yes – provided they meet the 
criteria 

29 Will there be a clarification meeting for stage 2 pitch 
process? 

Yes – but only for the shortlisted 
bidders 

30 6. On page 25 of the RFP, it states that bidders which 
meets minimum threshold for pitch (Gate 2) will proceed 
to Gate 3, what is the minimum threshold for Gate 2?   

The threshold has not yet been set 
and will be done and communicated 
at the compulsory briefing session 
for short-listed agencies 

31 How many suppliers will be shortlisted for stage 2 Pitch 
process? 

All bidders who score 70% and more 
will be shortlisted 

32 We are currently putting together our tender and would 
like to link our proposal to your CI.  Would it be possible 
please for you to send us a copy of your CI document? 

All agencies may have access to SA 
Tourism’s CI manual and CI 
elements. We however believe that 
this will be more appropriate at the 
shortlisting phase. 
  
Bidders can in the meantime access 
Sa Tourism’s assets through the 
digital asset library, which is an 
open service: 
http://digitalassets.southafrica.net/ 

33 In point 9.5.1 (j) Transfer for skills to Clients and HDI’s, are 
we required to give examples of how we have trained 
Clients specifically? 
 
In 9.5.1 (n) Confirmation of valid Tax Status 
 
do we need to submit our Tax Certificate AND a letter 
confirming that SARS can check compliance on an ongoing 
basis, or will the tax certificate suffice 

 
Yes 
 
 
 
 
Yes, the letter should give SA 
Tourism permission to check tax  
compliance on an ongoing basis 

34 If basing on generic scorecard, our BBBEE certificate rates 
us level 1 QSE and specifically states MAC Sector Code. Is 
this ok? 

SA Tourism will consider B-BBEE level 
of contribution based on the 
assessment certificate presented so 
it will consider either or. 

35 If the EME/QSE becomes unable to render the services 
during the course of the agreement (eg. bankruptcy) can 
the tendering company replace them with another company 
or will this affect the status of the entire relationship. 

There will be guidelines on how a 
partner agency can be replaced due 
to non-performance, and this will be 
done in consultation with SA Tourism 



 
Is the EME/QSE required to remain at least 51% black owned 
and have a valid BBBEE certificate for the entire period of 
the contract. If for some reason they do not can the 
tendering company cancel the contract 

 
Yes, that will be a contractual 
requirement as it will also be the 
basis of consideration and 
appointment. Failure to comply with 
the condition for the period of the 
contract could lead to the 
cancellation of the contract 

36 The questions are:  
1. Is it our responsibility to find compatible agencies 
practicing in the other disciplines?  
2. Are we allowed to submit our proposal which focuses on 
the discipline of our interest in this endeavour? 

 
1. Yes, relative to the discipline(s) 

being tendered for. 
2. Yes, SA Tourism is looking at 

appointing best in breed 
agencies for respective 
discipline(s) 

37 According to the section 9.7 Bid Evaluation Process, Phase 
0 Pre-qualification criteria (Gate 0): It stipulates that 
“Bidders must submit all documents as outlined under Part 
A & Part B of Paragraph 9.5.1.” and the Bidder Compliance 
Form for Functional Evaluation falls under this paragraph 
9.5.1 and taking into consideration my phone call to 
yourself earlier today, 
 
Please clarify and confirm if we need to submit the Bidder 
Compliance Form for Functional Evaluation? 
If so, where would we find the Bidder Compliance Form for 
Functional Evaluation? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
For this phase this refers to cross 
referencing the evaluation criteria 
under paragraph 9.7.2 to the 
respective pages/section in the bid 
proposal for easy reference 

38 Please may you share some light with regards to 30 % 
subcontracting to EME AND QSE’S. 
 
Can the Lead Agency specifically for the Creative Services 
submit more than one EME or QSE Subcontractor that 
specialises in a specific area of expertise? For example, 
outsourcing only ATL creative services to one EME and 
another part of the BTL Creative services to another EME? 
Can you split the outsource commitment like 15% ATL 
agency and 15 % BTL Agency if we are allowed to 
subcontract to more than one? 

 
 
 
Yes this will be allowed as long as 
substantive evidence is provided that 
the 30% sub-contracting will be met 
collectively and it is clear what the 
sub-contract(s) will be responsible 
for 

39 Under Annexure B – Company Information: 
On Page 37 to page 38: 
Does the Questionnaire to Bidding Foreign Suppliers on page 
37 continue on to page 38, and if we are not a foreign 
supplier do we need to still complete pages 37 – 38? 

 
Information relating to foreign 
suppliers is only a sub-section where 
all other information still needs to be 
provided 

40 On page 37 - where it states " TOTAL NUMER OF YEARS THE 
FIRM HAS BEEN IN BUSINESS..." on wards - does that relate 
to FORIGN SUPPLIERS Only ? 

No, information relating to foreign 
suppliers is only a sub-section where 
all other information still needs to be 
provided 

41 On Page 14: Under 8.7 Annexure G: National Treasury 
Centralised Supplier Database: point (F) it states that: “It 
is a requirement that bidder’s grant a written confirmation 
when submitting this bid that SARS may on an ongoing basis 
during the tenure of the contract disclose the bidder’s tax 
compliance status and by submitting this bid such 
confirmation is deemed to have been granted”. 
 
On Page 23: Under Part A – Legal and commercial 
information: point (n) under Confirmation of valid tax 
status: “Written confirmation that SARS may, on an ongoing 
basis during the tenure of the contract, disclose the 
bidder’s tax compliance” 

Yes, requirement is to give SA 
Tourism permission to check tax 
compliance on an ongoing basis 



 

42 On page 14: 
 
Point 8.5 Annexure E: Declaration of interest for tenders 
 
Point 8.6 Annexure F: Tender Enterprise Declaration 
Affidavit (which a commissioner of oaths must sign and 
stamp) 
When I look at the actual documents, it shows the 
following: 
 
Page 42-43: Annexure E: shows it’s the declaration of 
interest for tenders, (where a commissioner of oaths needs 
to stamp). 
 
Page44-47: Annexure F: shows it’s the declaration of 
interest for tenders (SBD4) 
 
Question is, which Annexure is the enterprise declaration 
affidavit and which is the declaration of interest for 
tenders. 

 
Annexure E and F are both 
declarations for different purposes 
where enterprise declaration 
affidavit information has partially 
been included as part of Annexure B. 
 
 

43 Account track record/expertise 
Infrastructure /capacity (location, operational strategy and 
methodology, resources, consultation, accounting planning 
and reporting capabilities). Please explain this a little 
better. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
We have tried to access the CSD to have a look at your 
suppliers, however we have encountered difficulties in 
finding the information that we need. Please advise on 
what the procurement number is, or if the location of the 
EME’s and QSE’s. 

Accounting track record refers to list 
of previous and current clients and 
work that was or is being done for 
them. Expertise refers to capacity 
and capability to provide the services 
being tendered for and how you are 
able to demonstrate it by providing a 
portfolio for evidence which speaks 
to the categories we mention  
 
 
SA Tourism have indicated that 
Technical assistance on how to do so 
can be solicited from 
Tumelo.Ntlaba@treasury.gov.za 
 

44 Please clarify what related companies mean in the below 
clause.  
 
“Do you or any of the 
directors/trustees/shareholders/members of the company 
have any interest in any other related companies whether 
or not they are bidding for this 
 
contract? 2.11.1  
 
If yes, furnish particulars: “ 

 
 
This refers to names of other 
companies where interest are held 
besides the bidding company, and 
what that interest exactly is 

45 One of our partners is a currently a Level 4 and they are 
now about to be Level 2 by Jun / July pending final 
approval. When submitting, how would you want them to 
present this BEE, would you advise us including the letter 
stating that the BEE would be level 4 by then. How will this 
affect us going in? or would we go in the new Level due in 
June 

The bid evaluation will only consider 
information and evidence presented 
at the time the bid closes. 

46 a.     Our BBBEE certification is based on the sector code 
which is the code that we fall under. The BBBEE codes of 
good practice require all entities to follow the sector code 
that applies to their sector. This means that entities have 
to be rated in terms of their sector code and are not 
allowed to obtain a certificate under any other sector code 

 
 
 
SA Tourism will consider B-BBEE level 
of contribution based on the 

mailto:Tumelo.Ntlaba@treasury.gov.za


or the generic code. The problem is that this means that 
any tendering entity will not be able to provide you a valid 
BBBEE certificate. As mentioned in a previous email our 
BBBEE certificate is rated against MAC sector codes. 
b.     It will be almost impossible to find a media agency 
that is an EME or a QSE under the generic codes. The reason 
is that media agencies typically only get to keep around 
about 3% to 7% of the total amount they bill to clients. The 
rest is paid to third parties. As a result a small start-up 
company would be a QSE after winning one client and would 
be a large entity after winning 2 or 3 clients. However they 
would still be very small. The MAC charter recognises this 
and as a result bases billings on the actual amount the 
agency gets to keep. By insisting on the generic codes this 
causes a major practical problem. 
c.     In the briefing it was mentioned that ACA guidelines 
are applied. The ACA and its ember agencies fall under the 
MAC Sector Code. 
 

assessment certificate presented so 
it will consider either or 

 


